
           

 
Agenda for the Meeting of Brentwood Beer Board

Monday, July 22, 2019 following City Commission meeting at 7:00 pm
Brentwood City Hall

           

Call to Order by Mayor
Roll Call

Approval of Minutes
June 10, 2019  

New Business
1. Request from Serve It Up Nashville, LLC for off premises beer permit at Brentwood

Market, 925 Franklin Road (new business)
 

2. Beer Law Violation Hearing - Brick's Cafe & Bistro, LLC, 330 Franklin Road, Ste 913  
3. Beer Law Violation Hearing - Chili's Grill & Bar, 107 Creekside Crossing  
4. Beer Law Violation Hearing - Local Taco, 146 Pewitt Drive  
5. Other new business  

Kirk Bednar
City Manager

Anyone requesting accommodations due to disabilities should contact Mike Worsham, A.D.A. Coordinator, at
371-0060, before the meeting.



   
Brentwood Beer Board Agenda           
Meeting Date: 07/22/2019  
Submitted by:Holly Earls, Administration
Department: Administration

Information
Subject
Approval or correction of minutes from the June 10, 2019 meeting

Background
Staff recommendation

Attachments
Draft Minutes 



D R A F T
MINUTES OF MEETING OF BRENTWOOD BEER BOARD

 
BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

 
The Brentwood Beer Board met on Monday, June 10, 2019 at 6:45 pm at Brentwood City Hall.
 
 

Present: Vice Mayor Ken Travis; Commissioner Nelson Andrews; Commissioner Anne Dunn;
Commissioner Mark Gorman; Commissioner Rhea Little; Commissioner Susannah
Macmillan; Commissioner Regina Smithson 

Staff
Present:

City Manager Kirk Bednar; Assistant City Manager Jay Evans; City Attorney Kristen
Corn; City Recorder Holly Earls 

 

               

Approval of Minutes
 

May 28, 2019   

 
  Moved by Commissioner Rhea Little for approval of the minutes as written, seconded

by Commissioner Regina Smithson 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Approved - Unanimously
 

New Business
 

Request from Bluefin Sushi & Thai, LLC for on premises beer permit at Bluefin Sushi &
Thai, 210 Franklin Road, Ste 700 (change in ownership of existing business)

  

 
  Moved by Commissioner Mark Gorman for approval, seconded by Commissioner

Susannah Macmillan 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Approved - Unanimously
 

With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:51 pm.
 

APPROVED ________________

Holly Earls, City Recorder



   
    New Business    1.        

Brentwood Beer Board Agenda
Meeting Date: 07/22/2019  
Submitted by:Holly Earls, Administration
Department: Administration

Information
Subject
Request of Serve It Up Nashville, LLC for off-premises beer permit at Brentwood Market,
925 Franklin Road (new business)

Background
Serve It Up Nashville, LLC has requested an off-premises beer sales permit for the
Brentwood Market located at 925 Franklin Road.  The application is for a new business.
 

Staff recommendation
N/A

Attachments
Application 

















   
    New Business    2.        

Brentwood Beer Board Agenda
Meeting Date: 07/22/2019  
Submitted by:Holly Earls, Administration
Department: Administration

Information
Subject
Beer Law Violation Hearing - Brick's Cafe & Bistro, LLC, 330 Franklin Road, Ste 913

Background
In an operation carried out by the Tennessee Alcoholic Beverage Commission, an
underage informant purchased beer at Brick's Cafe & Bistro, LLC on April 4, 2019.  The
Brentwood Beer Board is empowered to take action against the restaurant for violating
Tennessee law and/or the Brentwood Municipal Code.  

A summons (copy attached) was served on the manager of Brick's Cafe & Bistro, LLC on
May 20, 2019, requiring an appearance before the Beer Board on July 22, 2019 at 7:00
p.m. following the City Commission meeting.  A suggested procedural format used in
previous Beer Board proceedings is also attached.  A questionnaire was returned by
the permit holder indicating that the permit holder does not wish to contest the charges.  It
also includes documentation showing measures that were in place to prevent the sale of
beer to minors and subsequent measures that have been taken to prevent future
occurrences. 

Since Brick's Cafe & Bistro, LLC is not contesting the charges, there is no need for an
evidentiary hearing in this matter.  To supplement the documentation provided to the City,
representatives may also make statements to the Beer Board at the July 22 hearing.  At the
conclusion of the hearing, the Beer Board will then discuss and vote upon the appropriate
penalty, if any, to be imposed.

For the sale of beer to a minor at this location, the Beer Board may suspend the beer
permit.  (If a permit holder has committed at least two violations within a 12-month
period, the Beer Board may permanently revoke the beer permit.  That is not the case in
this matter.)  At the time a suspension or revocation is imposed, state law authorizes the
Beer Board to offer the permit holder the alternative of paying a civil penalty in lieu of the
suspension or revocation.  For the offense of selling beer to a minor, the civil penalty may
not exceed $2,500.  If a civil penalty is offered as an alternative, a permit holder must pay
the penalty within seven days; otherwise, the suspension or revocation will go into effect. 

Brick's had a previous violation on February 27, 2018. The Beer Board issued a penalty of



a seven-day suspension and required Brick's to post signs alerting its customers of the
suspension. As an alternative, Brick's was given the option to pay a $2,000 penalty.
Brick's chose to pay the penalty.

In 2002, the Beer Board adopted guidelines for penalties to be imposed when beer permit
holders violate the beer laws.  Those guidelines are also attached.  The guidelines are
intended to provide for consistency in the way beer law violations are handled, although
the Beer Board has discretion to impose penalties other than those outlined in the
guidelines. 

Finally, when the sale of beer for on-premises consumption results in a suspension or
revocation by a local beer board, state law requires that notification of the beer board's
action be sent by certified mail to the Tennessee Alcoholic Beverage Commission (ABC). 
The ABC may then take further action against the permit holder. 

Please contact the City Attorney if you have questions about this matter.

Staff recommendation

Attachments
Hearing Format 
Summons & Incident Report 
Penalty Guidelines 
Beer Violations History 
2019 Questionnaire 
2018 Questionnaire 



BRENTWOOD BEER BOARD
July 22, 2019

Case No. BBB-2019-01
Violation Hearing - Procedural Format 

Brick’s Café & Bistro, LLC, 330 Franklin Road, Ste 913

1. Chairman calls case number and permit holder’s name:  Case No. BBB-2019-01, Brick’s 
Café & Bistro, LLC.

2. Chairman asks permit holder’s representative to step forward and identify him/herself.

3. Chairman reads the charges against the permit holder:  The Chief of Police and the City 
Manager of the City of Brentwood have brought the following charges:  On the 4th day of 
April, 2019, your employee or agent, Erick Watson, unlawfully sold beer to a person under 
the age of 21 years at Brick’s Café & Bistro, LLC, located at 330 Franklin Road.

4. Chairman states:  In documents filed with the Beer Board, Brick’s Café & Bistro, LLC has 
indicated that it does not wish to contest the charges brought against it.  We have also 
received documentation of measures that were in place to prevent the sale of beer to minors 
and subsequent measures that have been taken to prevent future occurrences.  Do you have 
any further statements you wish to make to the Beer Board that related to this matter?  

5. Following the representative’s statement (if any) the chairman and other members of the 
Beer Board (upon being recognized by the chairman) may ask questions of the 
representative.

6. Following questions and discussion by the Beer Board members, any member may move to 
impose a penalty (or that no penalty be imposed.)  The penalty may be based on the penalty 
guidelines adopted by the Beer Board, or it may deviate from the guidelines at the Beer 
Board’s discretion.  A motion to suspend or revoke a permit should state the date on which 
the suspension or revocation is to be effective.  Upon a second to the motion and any further 
discussion, a vote is taken on the motion.  The motion passes if a majority of the board 
members present and voting vote for the motion.  









BRENTWOOD BEER BOARD 
PENALTY GUIDELINES 
(Adopted April 22, 2002) 

 
The following guidelines are intended to provide standards to the Brentwood Beer Board in 
imposing penalties for violations of state or local beer laws and regulations in a fair, reasonable 
and consistent manner.  These guidelines are not intended to dictate the penalty to be imposed, 
but rather to provide guidance to the members of the Board in their decisions.  For each violation 
heard by the Beer Board, the Board will continue to have complete discretion to exercise any and 
all powers granted by state law and local ordinance.  In each case, the Board may agree that a 
greater or lesser penalty should be imposed due to aggravating or mitigating circumstances. 
 
In applying the penalties below, it is suggested that if no violations have occurred within the 
previous three years, the incident will be treated as a first violation.  The “alternative” penalties 
set forth below would be allowed only if the Beer Board deems that the permit holder had 
appropriate training and/or other preventative measures in place to prevent violations of the beer 
laws, and that appropriate steps will be taken to prevent future violations.  As a condition of the 
alternative penalty, the Beer Board may require the permit holder to submit documentation 
regarding training programs in place.  It is suggested that the penalty period begin one week 
following the Beer Board’s decision, in order to provide time for the permit holder to comply 
with the conditions of the alternative penalty. 
 
 
 
First violation 
 
 
Second violation 
 
 
Third violation 
 
Fourth violation 

 
Penalty 

 
30 day suspension 

 
 

45 day suspension 
 
 

60 day suspension 
 

Revocation**

 
Alternative 

 
One week suspension/post 

signs* 
 

Two week suspension/post 
signs*  

 
No alternative 

 
No alternative 

 
* See attached wording and specifications for sign to be posted at each entrance and on each beer cooler 
door. 

 
** In order to impose revocation, there must be at least two violations within a 12-month period. 
 
Note:  At the time of adoption of these guidelines, Tennessee law also provided that the Beer Board may 
offer a permit holder the alternative of paying a monetary penalty of up to $1,500 for the sale of beer to a 
minor, or up to $1,000 for other violations. The maximum penalty for the sale of beer to a minor was 
subsequently increased to $2,500.  However, the Tennessee General Assembly also created a 
“Responsible Vendor” program for off–premises beer permit holders. The permit of an off-premises 
permit holder who complies with this program may not be suspended or revoked.  However, a monetary 
penalty not to exceed $1,000 may be imposed on a “Responsible Vendor” for the sale of beer to a minor 
or any other offense. 



 
NO BEER SALES 

 
 

BEER WAS SOLD TO A MINOR 
AT THIS LOCATION. 

PERMIT SUSPENDED. 
 
 
 

By order of the 
City of Brentwood Beer Board. 

 
 
 

 
{Above text to be printed in red lettering, with top line approximately 1 ½ inches 
tall; middle lines approximately 1 inch tall; and bottom line approximately 1 inch 
tall.} 



Name of Business Address Date of Violation Suspension/Penalty
55 South 7031 Executive Center Dr 2/27/2018 Paid $2000 penalty
Amoco Food Shop 7112 Moores Lane 9/8/1997 30 day probation
B P Oil 7108 Moores Lane 4/23/1993 105 days
B P Oil 158 Franklin Road 5/3/1993 4 months
Brentwood Market & Deli 925 Franklin Road 5/18/1994 45 days
Brick's Café & Bistro 330 Franklin Road 2/27/2018 Paid $2000 penalty
Brick's Café & Bistro 330 Franklin Road 4/4/2019 TBD
Canyon Café 1645 Westgate Circle 8/19/1999 30 days
Chili’s Grill & Bar 107 Creekside Crossing 12/28/2013 7 days with signs
Chili’s Grill & Bar 107 Creekside Crossing 4/4/2019 TBD
Church Street Pub
(a/k/a The Pub or the Pac)

7022 Church Street 8/19/2004 6 months

City Café 330 Franklin Rd, Ste 250B 4/4/2019 TBD
Concord General Store 1101 Wilson Pike 5/18/1994 30 days
Cozymel’s Coastal Grill 1654 Westgate Circle 12/28/2013 7 days with signs
Gulf Market 158 Franklin Road 2/19/1989 60 days
H. G. Hill #21 235 Franklin Road 3/15/2002 Paid $1500 penalty
Hanabi Japanese Restaurant 214 Ward Circle 2/27/2018 Paid $2000 penalty
Jefferson's Restaurant 214 Ward Circle 2/27/2018 Paid $2000 penalty
Judge Bean’s BBQ 7022 Church Street 12/28/2013 7 days with signs
Kroger 330 Franklin Road 5/18/1994 45 days
Kwik Sak 7116 Moores Lane 5/18/1994 45 days
Kwik Sak 7116 Moores Lane 3/8/2002 30 days (new owner)
Le Skewer 330 Franklin Rd, Ste 904D 4/4/2019 TBD
Little Bros Amoco 141 Franklin Road 3/5/1993 60 days
Little Bros Amoco 141 Franklin Road 5/18/1994 120 days
Little Bros Amoco 141 Franklin Road 3/15/2002 7 days with signs
Local Taco 146 Pewitt Drive 2/27/2018 7 days with signs
Local Taco 146 Pewitt Drive 4/4/2019 TBD
Ludlow & Prime 330 Franklin Rd, Ste 226B 4/4/2019 TBD

Beer Violations History by Name



Mapco Express
Williams Express (formerly Mapco)

8009 Moores Lane 5/18/1994 45 days

Mapco Express
Williams Express (formerly Mapco)

8009 Moores Lane 8/19/1999 30 days

Mapco Express
Williams Express (formerly Mapco)

8009 Moores Lane 5/20/2016 Paid $1000 penalty

Pei Wei Asian Diner 101 Creekside Crossing, Ste 1800 4/4/2019 TBD
Piggly Wiggly 144 Wilson Pike 5/18/1994 45 days
Shogun Steakhouse 1648 Westgate Circle 8/19/1999 30 days
Sportsman Lodge 1640 Westgate Circle 8/19/1999 30 days
Star Market 120 Franklin Road 10/19/1984 30 day probation
Star Market 120 Franklin Road 4/4/1985 30 days
Stout Burgers and Beers 400 Centerview Drive 2/27/2018 Paid $2500 penalty
The Smokey Cigar 2 1800 Carothers Pkwy, Ste 1 5/20/2016 Paid $1000 penalty
Twin Peaks 1634 Galleria Boulevard 4/4/2019 TBD







   
    New Business    3.        

Brentwood Beer Board Agenda
Meeting Date: 07/22/2019  
Submitted by:Holly Earls, Administration
Department: Administration

Information
Subject
Beer Law Violation Hearing - Chili's Grill & Bar, 107 Creekside Crossing

Background
In an operation carried out by the Tennessee Alcoholic Beverage Commission, an
underage informant purchased beer at Chili's Grill & Bar on April 4, 2019.  The
Brentwood Beer Board is empowered to take action against the restaurant for violating
Tennessee law and/or the Brentwood Municipal Code.  

A summons (copy attached) was served on the manager of Chili's Grill & Bar on May 20,
2019, requiring an appearance before the Beer Board on July 22, 2019 at 7:00 p.m.
following the City Commission meeting.  A suggested procedural format used in previous
Beer Board proceedings is also attached.  A questionnaire was returned by the permit
holder indicating that the permit holder does not wish to contest the charges.  It also
includes documentation showing measures that were in place to prevent the sale of beer to
minors and subsequent measures that have been taken to prevent future occurrences. 

Since Chili's Grill & Bar is not contesting the charges, there is no need for an evidentiary
hearing in this matter.  To supplement the documentation provided to the City,
representatives may also make statements to the Beer Board at the July 22 hearing.  At the
conclusion of the hearing, the Beer Board will then discuss and vote upon the appropriate
penalty, if any, to be imposed.

For the sale of beer to a minor at this location, the Beer Board may suspend the beer
permit.  (If a permit holder has committed at least two violations within a 12-month
period, the Beer Board may permanently revoke the beer permit.  That is not the case in
this matter.)  At the time a suspension or revocation is imposed, state law authorizes the
Beer Board to offer the permit holder the alternative of paying a civil penalty in lieu of the
suspension or revocation.  For the offense of selling beer to a minor, the civil penalty may
not exceed $2,500.  If a civil penalty is offered as an alternative, a permit holder must pay
the penalty within seven days; otherwise, the suspension or revocation will go into effect. 

Chili's had a previous violation on December 28, 2013. The Beer Board issued a penalty
of a seven-day suspension and required Chili's to post signs alerting its customers of the



suspension.

In 2002, the Beer Board adopted guidelines for penalties to be imposed when beer permit
holders violate the beer laws.  Those guidelines are also attached.  The guidelines are
intended to provide for consistency in the way beer law violations are handled, although
the Beer Board has discretion to impose penalties other than those outlined in the
guidelines. 

Finally, when the sale of beer for on-premises consumption results in a suspension or
revocation by a local beer board, state law requires that notification of the beer board's
action be sent by certified mail to the Tennessee Alcoholic Beverage Commission (ABC). 
The ABC may then take further action against the permit holder. 

Please contact the City Attorney if you have questions about this matter.

Staff recommendation
N/A

Attachments
Hearing Format 
Summons & Incident Report 
Penalty Guidelines 
Beer Violations History 
Questionnaire 
Prehearing Memorandum 



BRENTWOOD BEER BOARD
July 22, 2019

Case No. BBB-2019-02
Violation Hearing - Procedural Format 

Chili’s Grill & Bar, 107 Creekside Crossing

1. Chairman calls case number and permit holder’s name:  Case No. BBB-2019-02, Chili’s 
Grill & Bar.  

2. Chairman asks permit holder’s representative to step forward and identify him/herself.

3. Chairman reads the charges against the permit holder:  The Chief of Police and the City 
Manager of the City of Brentwood have brought the following charges:  On the 4th day of 
April, 2019, your employee or agent unlawfully sold beer to a person under the age of 21 
years at Chili’s Grill & Bar, located at 107 Creekside Crossing.

4. Chairman states:  In documents filed with the Beer Board, Chili’s Grill & Bar has indicated 
that it does not wish to contest the charges brought against it.  We have also received 
documentation of measures that were in place to prevent the sale of beer to minors and 
subsequent measures that have been taken to prevent future occurrences.  Do you have any 
further statements you wish to make to the Beer Board that related to this matter?  

5. Following the representative’s statement (if any) the chairman and other members of the 
Beer Board (upon being recognized by the chairman) may ask questions of the 
representative.

6. Following questions and discussion by the Beer Board members, any member may move to 
impose a penalty (or that no penalty be imposed.)  The penalty may be based on the penalty 
guidelines adopted by the Beer Board, or it may deviate from the guidelines at the Beer 
Board’s discretion.  A motion to suspend or revoke a permit should state the date on which 
the suspension or revocation is to be effective.  Upon a second to the motion and any further 
discussion, a vote is taken on the motion.  The motion passes if a majority of the board 
members present and voting vote for the motion.  









BRENTWOOD BEER BOARD 
PENALTY GUIDELINES 
(Adopted April 22, 2002) 

 
The following guidelines are intended to provide standards to the Brentwood Beer Board in 
imposing penalties for violations of state or local beer laws and regulations in a fair, reasonable 
and consistent manner.  These guidelines are not intended to dictate the penalty to be imposed, 
but rather to provide guidance to the members of the Board in their decisions.  For each violation 
heard by the Beer Board, the Board will continue to have complete discretion to exercise any and 
all powers granted by state law and local ordinance.  In each case, the Board may agree that a 
greater or lesser penalty should be imposed due to aggravating or mitigating circumstances. 
 
In applying the penalties below, it is suggested that if no violations have occurred within the 
previous three years, the incident will be treated as a first violation.  The “alternative” penalties 
set forth below would be allowed only if the Beer Board deems that the permit holder had 
appropriate training and/or other preventative measures in place to prevent violations of the beer 
laws, and that appropriate steps will be taken to prevent future violations.  As a condition of the 
alternative penalty, the Beer Board may require the permit holder to submit documentation 
regarding training programs in place.  It is suggested that the penalty period begin one week 
following the Beer Board’s decision, in order to provide time for the permit holder to comply 
with the conditions of the alternative penalty. 
 
 
 
First violation 
 
 
Second violation 
 
 
Third violation 
 
Fourth violation 

 
Penalty 

 
30 day suspension 

 
 

45 day suspension 
 
 

60 day suspension 
 

Revocation**

 
Alternative 

 
One week suspension/post 

signs* 
 

Two week suspension/post 
signs*  

 
No alternative 

 
No alternative 

 
* See attached wording and specifications for sign to be posted at each entrance and on each beer cooler 
door. 

 
** In order to impose revocation, there must be at least two violations within a 12-month period. 
 
Note:  At the time of adoption of these guidelines, Tennessee law also provided that the Beer Board may 
offer a permit holder the alternative of paying a monetary penalty of up to $1,500 for the sale of beer to a 
minor, or up to $1,000 for other violations. The maximum penalty for the sale of beer to a minor was 
subsequently increased to $2,500.  However, the Tennessee General Assembly also created a 
“Responsible Vendor” program for off–premises beer permit holders. The permit of an off-premises 
permit holder who complies with this program may not be suspended or revoked.  However, a monetary 
penalty not to exceed $1,000 may be imposed on a “Responsible Vendor” for the sale of beer to a minor 
or any other offense. 



 
NO BEER SALES 

 
 

BEER WAS SOLD TO A MINOR 
AT THIS LOCATION. 

PERMIT SUSPENDED. 
 
 
 

By order of the 
City of Brentwood Beer Board. 

 
 
 

 
{Above text to be printed in red lettering, with top line approximately 1 ½ inches 
tall; middle lines approximately 1 inch tall; and bottom line approximately 1 inch 
tall.} 



Name of Business Address Date of Violation Suspension/Penalty
55 South 7031 Executive Center Dr 2/27/2018 Paid $2000 penalty
Amoco Food Shop 7112 Moores Lane 9/8/1997 30 day probation
B P Oil 7108 Moores Lane 4/23/1993 105 days
B P Oil 158 Franklin Road 5/3/1993 4 months
Brentwood Market & Deli 925 Franklin Road 5/18/1994 45 days
Brick's Café & Bistro 330 Franklin Road 2/27/2018 Paid $2000 penalty
Brick's Café & Bistro 330 Franklin Road 4/4/2019 TBD
Canyon Café 1645 Westgate Circle 8/19/1999 30 days
Chili’s Grill & Bar 107 Creekside Crossing 12/28/2013 7 days with signs
Chili’s Grill & Bar 107 Creekside Crossing 4/4/2019 TBD
Church Street Pub
(a/k/a The Pub or the Pac)

7022 Church Street 8/19/2004 6 months

City Café 330 Franklin Rd, Ste 250B 4/4/2019 TBD
Concord General Store 1101 Wilson Pike 5/18/1994 30 days
Cozymel’s Coastal Grill 1654 Westgate Circle 12/28/2013 7 days with signs
Gulf Market 158 Franklin Road 2/19/1989 60 days
H. G. Hill #21 235 Franklin Road 3/15/2002 Paid $1500 penalty
Hanabi Japanese Restaurant 214 Ward Circle 2/27/2018 Paid $2000 penalty
Jefferson's Restaurant 214 Ward Circle 2/27/2018 Paid $2000 penalty
Judge Bean’s BBQ 7022 Church Street 12/28/2013 7 days with signs
Kroger 330 Franklin Road 5/18/1994 45 days
Kwik Sak 7116 Moores Lane 5/18/1994 45 days
Kwik Sak 7116 Moores Lane 3/8/2002 30 days (new owner)
Le Skewer 330 Franklin Rd, Ste 904D 4/4/2019 TBD
Little Bros Amoco 141 Franklin Road 3/5/1993 60 days
Little Bros Amoco 141 Franklin Road 5/18/1994 120 days
Little Bros Amoco 141 Franklin Road 3/15/2002 7 days with signs
Local Taco 146 Pewitt Drive 2/27/2018 7 days with signs
Local Taco 146 Pewitt Drive 4/4/2019 TBD
Ludlow & Prime 330 Franklin Rd, Ste 226B 4/4/2019 TBD

Beer Violations History by Name



Mapco Express
Williams Express (formerly Mapco)

8009 Moores Lane 5/18/1994 45 days

Mapco Express
Williams Express (formerly Mapco)

8009 Moores Lane 8/19/1999 30 days

Mapco Express
Williams Express (formerly Mapco)

8009 Moores Lane 5/20/2016 Paid $1000 penalty

Pei Wei Asian Diner 101 Creekside Crossing, Ste 1800 4/4/2019 TBD
Piggly Wiggly 144 Wilson Pike 5/18/1994 45 days
Shogun Steakhouse 1648 Westgate Circle 8/19/1999 30 days
Sportsman Lodge 1640 Westgate Circle 8/19/1999 30 days
Star Market 120 Franklin Road 10/19/1984 30 day probation
Star Market 120 Franklin Road 4/4/1985 30 days
Stout Burgers and Beers 400 Centerview Drive 2/27/2018 Paid $2500 penalty
The Smokey Cigar 2 1800 Carothers Pkwy, Ste 1 5/20/2016 Paid $1000 penalty
Twin Peaks 1634 Galleria Boulevard 4/4/2019 TBD







 

4827‐0045‐2508.2 

BEFORE THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD 
BEER BOARD 

 
CITY OF BRENTWOOD,    ) 
       ) 
 Plaintiff,     ) 
       ) 
v.       ) Case No. BBB-2019-02 
       ) 
CHILI’S, INC.     ) 
d/b/a CHILI’S GRILL & BAR   ) 
107 Creekside Crossing    ) 
Brentwood, Tennessee 37027,   ) 
       ) 
 Permittee.     ) 
 

 
PREHEARING MEMORANDUM 

 
 Chili’s, Inc. (“Chili’s”) provides this memorandum and supporting documentation for 

consideration by the Beer Board of the City of Brentwood when determining the appropriate 

disciplinary action to be taken as a result of an employee mistakenly but unlawfully selling beer 

to a person under the age of 21 at Chili’s Grill & Bar located at 107 Creekside Crossing, in 

Brentwood, Tennessee (“Brentwood Chili’s”).  Because Chili’s had appropriate training and 

preventative measures in place to prevent violations of the beer laws, and because Chili’s has 

taken and will continue to take appropriate steps to prevent future violations, Chili’s requests that 

the Beer Board impose no more than a one-week suspension with posted signs.   

 A. History and Prior Policies and Procedures 
 
 As a company, Chili’s has long recognized a zero tolerance policy for sales to minors at 

all of its locations in Tennessee.  In December of 2013, the Brentwood Chili’s had a sale to a 

minor and received a seven-day suspension as a penalty for that violation.  Following that 

violation, Chili’s refocused efforts on its training and policies regarding beer service and 

universal carding at this and other Tennessee locations, customizing a more stringent carding 



 

4827‐0045‐2508.2 
2 

 

policy and implementing a program to identify patrons with under-21 driver’s licenses.  The 

Brentwood Chili’s requires secondary carding by managers for under-21 licenses and 

participates frequently in the BARS program (see Exhibit A for details on BARS).  There are 

signs posted at all point of sale terminals showing the year in which someone must have been 

born to serve alcohol.   

 Also after the 2013 sale, Jeff Bertoen, the manager at the Brentwood Chili’s, terminated a 

longer-term employee who was previously a manager when she failed to read an identification 

card at the appropriate time during a BARS exercise.  In that instance, because she did not want 

to interrupt a guest’s conversation, the employee poured a beer and planned to check the 

identification card before placing it in front of the guest.  Because the intent to serve was present, 

Mr. Bertoen made the swift and correct decision to terminate her employment. 

 Under the new program and focus of management and Chili’s staff, the Brentwood 

Chili’s went five and a half years without a sale to a minor.  As such, under the Brentwood Beer 

Board Penalty Guidelines, the instant violation should be treated as a first violation for purposes 

of any penalty imposed. 

 B. Relevant Facts of the Incident 
 
 The Chili’s employee involved in the April 2019 sale to a minor, Jill Kleeberg, had been 

a bartender with Chili’s for 21 years.  Ms. Kleeberg was well liked by all customers and staff.  

She had a nephew killed by a drunk driver, which resulted in her being typically very cautious 

regarding alcohol service.  Ms. Kleeberg looked at the customer’s driver’s license, but misread 

the date to be 1995, rather than 1998 or 1999.  She then failed to follow the policy of having a 

manager double check the driver’s license whenever it has a red box.  Despite her longevity with 

Chili’s and her favored status among regular customers, Ms. Kleeberg was terminated 



 

4827‐0045‐2508.2 
3 

 

immediately, consistent with the zero tolerance policy at Chili’s.  Because the policy is in place 

and has been for years, Ms. Kleeberg knew she would have to be terminated and did not argue.  

Regular customers from Chili’s attended Ms. Kleeberg’s criminal court hearing to show their 

support, and her case has been deferred.   

 Due to the standing and long history of the beloved veteran bartender, this incident has 

caused a cultural shift at the Brentwood Chili’s.  Every staff member understands the severity of 

serving to minors and that all Chili’s policies apply to them without exception, no matter who 

they are.  Since April, Chili’s management and staff have been speaking frequently during both 

formal and informal team meetings about the appropriate policies and procedures regarding 

carding and the handling of underage identification cards, including the fact that there is 

absolutely no excuse not to hand a red box ID to a manager to check.   

 C. Future Remedial Steps 
 
 As stated above, consistent with Chili’s policy, the bartender involved in the incident was 

terminated on the spot.  As outlined in the attached Corrective Action Plan for Chili’s Brentwood 

(Exhibit B), Chili’s has also implemented new, more stringent measures and has, where relevant, 

worked to reiterate prior policies.  Specifically, the Red Box Carding program memorandum 

(Exhibit C) is being distributed to each server and bartender.  Additionally, there is a sign off 

sheet that each server and bartender must sign each shift they work acknowledging their 

responsibilities pertaining to checking identification.  Managers are also leading shift 

communication on responsible alcohol service procedures via shift meetings or check-ins, and 

the Chili’s area director is performing random visits to validate that systems and procedures are 

being utilized properly.   







 

 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 
A 



�������� �	
����������������������������������	����� ���!�����"��#�����
�"	
���

���$!���#������$����	���������$	�� ���

%&'(&)'*�&)+'%
,-.�/012�3456478�-79�47:9.;�<58=>:7?<.�@47:?:?6@5�7?�7;A7?<.;�>.A.>B�C.�9.?;�5D4�E-.<F.49�@G:<.7�85?@-H�76.;�IJKILH�:?@5�<>:.?@�9@54.9�544.9@7D47?@�>5<7@:5?9�@5�<5?;D<@�85<F�=D4<-79.9�5M<:674.@@.9�7?;N54�O..4B�,-.�=D4=59.�5M�@-:9�:9�@585?:@54�@-.�9@54.�.8=>5P..9H�9..:?6�:M�@-.P�79FM54�@-.�<D9@58.4Q9�RS�=4:54�@5�TD5@:?6�7�=4:<.B�RM@-.�RS�:9�4.TD.9@.;H�@-.�.8=>5P..�4.<.:A.9�7�U4..?E74;B�RM�?5@H�7�1.;�E74;�:9�6:A.?BRM�7�9@54.�-79�7?�76.KA.4:V<7@:5?�;.A:<.H�G.85?:@54�:M�@-.�9@54.�.8=>5P..9�7<@D7>>P�D9.�@-.;.A:<.B�C.�=74@7F.�:?�4.6D>74�A:9:@9�@5�.?9D4.=45=.4�D9.�5M�@-.�35:?@K5MK27>.�W3X2Y�9P9@.8�7?;76.KA.4:V<7@:5?�;.A:<.9B0M@.4�@-.�A:9:@H�7?�.87:>�4.=54@�:9�9.?@�@5�@-.9@54.Q9�87?76.8.?@B�Z:9:@�4.9D>@9�74.�74<-:A.;�:?5D4�=799G54;K=45@.<@.;�4.=54@:?6�G.O9:@.B�Z:.G978=>.�4.=54@9B

[\]̂_

E47M@C54F9C̀.�D9.�/012�87:?>P�79�7�8.7?9�@5�:;.?@:MP4.9@7D47?@9�G-.4.�9@7a�74.�?5@�M5>>5G:?6=45@5<5>B�C.QA.�7>G7P9�-7;�64.7@�<D9@58.49.4A:<.�M458�/012�7?;�-7A.�4.<.:A.;:88.;:7@.�4.9=5?9.9�@5�7?P�<5?<.4?9�G.�87P-7A.�-7;B̀

bXRc 1d3X1,2e58.�,.9@:85?:7>9�e5G�:@�C54F9�,47:?:?6�/>56�E5?@7<@�f93-5?.g�JKhiiKLjkKLLkd87:>g�<D9@58.49.4A:<.lO749=456478B<5



�������� �	
����������������������������������	����� ���!�����"��#�����
�"	
���

���$!���#������$����	���������$	�� ���

%&'()*( +,&- ./&'01�234553678366889:);,1�*<=(&:0>=0>?;*0@A)>=B>&->):C*&:D/0�+EFGH�.>&->):�I2JJJ3K82LC %&M;'-�AN�OPQ



 

 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 
B 



 

4819‐1546‐7932.1 

 
 

Corrective Action Plan Chili’s Brentwood 
 
 

 
 

 Bartender Terminated on the spot 
 

 All New applicants must have a Valid TABC license within 30 Days of hire. 
 

 Managers  lead shift communication on Responsible Alcohol Service procedures via Shift Meetings or Check‐
ins, starting April 5th, 2019. 
 

 Any “under 21” licenses approved by Manager after the TM has validated the Correct Date of Birth. 
 

 Any Out of State licenses or Passports are approved by the Manager. Managers use the Official ID Handbook 
to verify Out of State IDs. 
 

 Any questionable ID servers get Manager approval.  
 

 Managers “spot check” throughout restaurant for guests that look under 30. 
 

 We have hired “The Bars Program” to spot check servers numerous times a month to see if they card or not 
before serving a secret shopper guest an alcoholic beverage. Immediate termination of server if they do not 
card or card incorrectly. Those that do card correctly are celebrated to reward the correct behaviors.  

 

 Digital calendar on the wall in the bar clearly states the proper birthdate to legally sell alcohol. 
 

 We  have  been  using  Sign  off  Sheet  that  each  server  and  bartender  must  sign  each  shift  they  work 
acknowledging  their  responsibilities  are  pertaining  to  checking  ID’s.  It  lists many  of  the  bullet  points  listed 
here. We  keep  the  binder  of  these monthly  for  the  GM  and  Area  Directors  to  verify  that  it  is  being  done 
effectively.  

 

 Point of Sale terminals show the correct year to serve. “Don’t sell alcohol to anyone born before 19XX.” 
 

 We ID EVERYONE, EVERYDAY, AT ANYTIME, FOR ANY ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE. We do not serve alcohol to any 
guest that does not have the proper valid identification. Explain to any disgruntled guest or regular WHY and 
get Manager involved with support if needed. 
 

 Area Director performs random visits to validate that systems and procedures are being utilized properly. 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 
C 



 

{4832-9152-7324.1 } 

  
 MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To:  Ms. Michele Bibb, Regional Licensing Manager 
  Mr. Jeff Bertoen, General Manager 
  Mr. Joshua Neufeld 
   
From:  William T. Cheek, III 
   
Date:  June 7, 2019 
 
Subject: RED BOX CARDING 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
This memorandum updates Red Box Carding procedures for the Brentwood Chili’s Bar & Grill. 
 
Under 21 drivers’ licenses have a bold red box around the photo.  We call these “Red Box IDs.”  
Here is a sample Red Box ID. 
 
 

 
 
 
Under 21 Tennessee drivers’ licenses have a defect.  Many Under 21 licenses do not expire when 
the driver turns 21.  Under 21 licenses can be valid for years after the driver turns 21.   



 

{4832-9152-7324.1 } 

 
Servers are often jaded and treat Red Box IDs like any other ID, ignoring the fact that the patron 
could be under the legal drinking age. 
 
Servers should be retrained to place additional scrutiny on Red Box IDs.  Keep in mind that most 
confidential informants working for the police, beer boards, or ABC will be carrying a Red Box 
ID, which clearly indicates that the confidential informant is under the age of 21.  
 
July 2018, Tennessee introduced a vertical driver’s license issued to anyone under 21 that 
obtains a driver’s license after July 1, 2018.  The vertical driver’s license also contains a Red 
Box with the under 21 date.  Problem is, the vertical driver’s license also does not expire when 
the driver turns 21.   
 

 
 
Nick’s ID will be valid for over four years after he turns 21, unless he replaces it after he turns 
21. 
 



 

{4832-9152-7324.1 } 

RED BOX CARDING 
 
The following are recommended steps for effective age identification for Red Box IDs: 
 
1. Before reading an ID, all servers must look patrons in the eye and ask “are you over 21?”  
Look for signs of nervousness that might suggest the patron is under age.  Law enforcement 
officers may avoid answering the question, which should be a red flag. 
 
2. If a server is presented a Red Box ID, turn the driver’s license sideways.  In the red box, 
the ID will read “Under 21 until _______.”  The blank is the date that the driver turns 21.  There 
is no math to do.  If the date in the red box is before today’s date, the patron is OVER 21.  If the 
date in the red box is after today’s date, the patron is UNDER 21. 
 
3. If the patron is over 21, examine the photo, height and eye color to ensure that the person 
has presented their own license. 
 
4. Servers do not have authority to serve anyone with a Red Box ID.  If the server believes 
that the patron is over the age of 21, the server should ask the patron to wait for a manager.  The 
server may explain that the patron has an under 21 driver’s license, which is why the ID must be 
verified. 
 
5. The manager should turn the driver’s license sideways to inspect the date to ensure the 
patron is over the age of 21. 
 
Double checking the ID for under 21 drivers’ licenses significantly decreases the chances that an 
establishment will serve a minor.  This includes confidential informants acting on behalf of the 
ABC, police, or beer boards. 
 
Thanks.  Will. 



   
    New Business    4.        

Brentwood Beer Board Agenda
Meeting Date: 07/22/2019  
Submitted by:Holly Earls, Administration
Department: Administration

Information
Subject
Beer Law Violation Hearing - Local Taco, 146 Pewitt Drive

Background
In an operation carried out by the Tennessee Alcoholic Beverage Commission, an
underage informant purchased beer at Local Taco on April 4, 2019.  The Brentwood Beer
Board is empowered to take action against the restaurant for violating Tennessee law
and/or the Brentwood Municipal Code.  

A summons (copy attached) was served on the manager of Local Taco on May 20, 2019,
requiring an appearance before the Beer Board on July 22, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. following
the City Commission meeting.  A suggested procedural format used in previous Beer
Board proceedings is also attached.  A questionnaire was returned by the permit holder
indicating that the permit holder does not wish to contest the charges.  It also includes
documentation showing measures that were in place to prevent the sale of beer to minors
and subsequent measures that have been taken to prevent future occurrences. 

Since Local Taco is not contesting the charges, there is no need for an evidentiary hearing
in this matter.  To supplement the documentation provided to the City, representatives
may also make statements to the Beer Board at the July 22 hearing.  At the conclusion of
the hearing, the Beer Board will then discuss and vote upon the appropriate penalty, if
any, to be imposed.

For the sale of beer to a minor at this location, the Beer Board may suspend the beer
permit.  (If a permit holder has committed at least two violations within a 12-month
period, the Beer Board may permanently revoke the beer permit.  That is not the case in
this matter.)  At the time a suspension or revocation is imposed, state law authorizes the
Beer Board to offer the permit holder the alternative of paying a civil penalty in lieu of the
suspension or revocation.  For the offense of selling beer to a minor, the civil penalty may
not exceed $2,500.  If a civil penalty is offered as an alternative, a permit holder must pay
the penalty within seven days; otherwise, the suspension or revocation will go into effect. 

Local Taco had a previous violation on February 27, 2018. The Beer Board issued a
penalty of a seven-day suspension and required Local Taco to post signs alerting its



customers of the suspension. As an alternative, Local Taco was given the option to pay a
$2,000 penalty. Local Taco chose a seven (7) day suspension and posted signs.

In 2002, the Beer Board adopted guidelines for penalties to be imposed when beer permit
holders violate the beer laws.  Those guidelines are also attached.  The guidelines are
intended to provide for consistency in the way beer law violations are handled, although
the Beer Board has discretion to impose penalties other than those outlined in the
guidelines. 

Finally, when the sale of beer for on-premises consumption results in a suspension or
revocation by a local beer board, state law requires that notification of the beer board's
action be sent by certified mail to the Tennessee Alcoholic Beverage Commission (ABC). 
The ABC may then take further action against the permit holder. 

Please contact the City Attorney if you have questions about this matter.

Staff recommendation
N/A

Attachments
Hearing Format 
Summons & Incident Report 
Penalty Guidelines 
Beer Violations History 
2019 Questionnaire 
2018 Questionnaire 
Supplement from Local Taco 



BRENTWOOD BEER BOARD
July 22, 2019

Case No. BBB-2019-03
Violation Hearing - Procedural Format 

Local Taco, 146 Pewitt Drive

1. Chairman calls case number and permit holder’s name:  Case No. BBB-2019-03, Local 
Taco.  

2. Chairman asks permit holder’s representative to step forward and identify him/herself.

3. Chairman reads the charges against the permit holder:  The Chief of Police and the City 
Manager of the City of Brentwood have brought the following charges:  On the 4th day of 
April, 2019, your employee or agent, Cassie Young, unlawfully sold beer to a person under 
the age of 21 years at Local Taco, located at 146 Pewitt Drive.

4. Chairman states:  In documents filed with the Beer Board, Local Taco has indicated that it 
does not wish to contest the charges brought against it.  We have also received 
documentation of measures that were in place to prevent the sale of beer to minors and 
subsequent measures that have been taken to prevent future occurrences.  Do you have any 
further statements you wish to make to the Beer Board that related to this matter?  

5. Following the representative’s statement (if any) the chairman and other members of the 
Beer Board (upon being recognized by the chairman) may ask questions of the 
representative.

6. Following questions and discussion by the Beer Board members, any member may move to 
impose a penalty (or that no penalty be imposed.)  The penalty may be based on the penalty 
guidelines adopted by the Beer Board, or it may deviate from the guidelines at the Beer 
Board’s discretion.  A motion to suspend or revoke a permit should state the date on which 
the suspension or revocation is to be effective.  Upon a second to the motion and any further 
discussion, a vote is taken on the motion.  The motion passes if a majority of the board 
members present and voting vote for the motion.  









BRENTWOOD BEER BOARD 
PENALTY GUIDELINES 
(Adopted April 22, 2002) 

 
The following guidelines are intended to provide standards to the Brentwood Beer Board in 
imposing penalties for violations of state or local beer laws and regulations in a fair, reasonable 
and consistent manner.  These guidelines are not intended to dictate the penalty to be imposed, 
but rather to provide guidance to the members of the Board in their decisions.  For each violation 
heard by the Beer Board, the Board will continue to have complete discretion to exercise any and 
all powers granted by state law and local ordinance.  In each case, the Board may agree that a 
greater or lesser penalty should be imposed due to aggravating or mitigating circumstances. 
 
In applying the penalties below, it is suggested that if no violations have occurred within the 
previous three years, the incident will be treated as a first violation.  The “alternative” penalties 
set forth below would be allowed only if the Beer Board deems that the permit holder had 
appropriate training and/or other preventative measures in place to prevent violations of the beer 
laws, and that appropriate steps will be taken to prevent future violations.  As a condition of the 
alternative penalty, the Beer Board may require the permit holder to submit documentation 
regarding training programs in place.  It is suggested that the penalty period begin one week 
following the Beer Board’s decision, in order to provide time for the permit holder to comply 
with the conditions of the alternative penalty. 
 
 
 
First violation 
 
 
Second violation 
 
 
Third violation 
 
Fourth violation 

 
Penalty 

 
30 day suspension 

 
 

45 day suspension 
 
 

60 day suspension 
 

Revocation**

 
Alternative 

 
One week suspension/post 

signs* 
 

Two week suspension/post 
signs*  

 
No alternative 

 
No alternative 

 
* See attached wording and specifications for sign to be posted at each entrance and on each beer cooler 
door. 

 
** In order to impose revocation, there must be at least two violations within a 12-month period. 
 
Note:  At the time of adoption of these guidelines, Tennessee law also provided that the Beer Board may 
offer a permit holder the alternative of paying a monetary penalty of up to $1,500 for the sale of beer to a 
minor, or up to $1,000 for other violations. The maximum penalty for the sale of beer to a minor was 
subsequently increased to $2,500.  However, the Tennessee General Assembly also created a 
“Responsible Vendor” program for off–premises beer permit holders. The permit of an off-premises 
permit holder who complies with this program may not be suspended or revoked.  However, a monetary 
penalty not to exceed $1,000 may be imposed on a “Responsible Vendor” for the sale of beer to a minor 
or any other offense. 



 
NO BEER SALES 

 
 

BEER WAS SOLD TO A MINOR 
AT THIS LOCATION. 

PERMIT SUSPENDED. 
 
 
 

By order of the 
City of Brentwood Beer Board. 

 
 
 

 
{Above text to be printed in red lettering, with top line approximately 1 ½ inches 
tall; middle lines approximately 1 inch tall; and bottom line approximately 1 inch 
tall.} 



Name of Business Address Date of Violation Suspension/Penalty
55 South 7031 Executive Center Dr 2/27/2018 Paid $2000 penalty
Amoco Food Shop 7112 Moores Lane 9/8/1997 30 day probation
B P Oil 7108 Moores Lane 4/23/1993 105 days
B P Oil 158 Franklin Road 5/3/1993 4 months
Brentwood Market & Deli 925 Franklin Road 5/18/1994 45 days
Brick's Café & Bistro 330 Franklin Road 2/27/2018 Paid $2000 penalty
Brick's Café & Bistro 330 Franklin Road 4/4/2019 TBD
Canyon Café 1645 Westgate Circle 8/19/1999 30 days
Chili’s Grill & Bar 107 Creekside Crossing 12/28/2013 7 days with signs
Chili’s Grill & Bar 107 Creekside Crossing 4/4/2019 TBD
Church Street Pub
(a/k/a The Pub or the Pac)

7022 Church Street 8/19/2004 6 months

City Café 330 Franklin Rd, Ste 250B 4/4/2019 TBD
Concord General Store 1101 Wilson Pike 5/18/1994 30 days
Cozymel’s Coastal Grill 1654 Westgate Circle 12/28/2013 7 days with signs
Gulf Market 158 Franklin Road 2/19/1989 60 days
H. G. Hill #21 235 Franklin Road 3/15/2002 Paid $1500 penalty
Hanabi Japanese Restaurant 214 Ward Circle 2/27/2018 Paid $2000 penalty
Jefferson's Restaurant 214 Ward Circle 2/27/2018 Paid $2000 penalty
Judge Bean’s BBQ 7022 Church Street 12/28/2013 7 days with signs
Kroger 330 Franklin Road 5/18/1994 45 days
Kwik Sak 7116 Moores Lane 5/18/1994 45 days
Kwik Sak 7116 Moores Lane 3/8/2002 30 days (new owner)
Le Skewer 330 Franklin Rd, Ste 904D 4/4/2019 TBD
Little Bros Amoco 141 Franklin Road 3/5/1993 60 days
Little Bros Amoco 141 Franklin Road 5/18/1994 120 days
Little Bros Amoco 141 Franklin Road 3/15/2002 7 days with signs
Local Taco 146 Pewitt Drive 2/27/2018 7 days with signs
Local Taco 146 Pewitt Drive 4/4/2019 TBD
Ludlow & Prime 330 Franklin Rd, Ste 226B 4/4/2019 TBD

Beer Violations History by Name



Mapco Express
Williams Express (formerly Mapco)

8009 Moores Lane 5/18/1994 45 days

Mapco Express
Williams Express (formerly Mapco)

8009 Moores Lane 8/19/1999 30 days

Mapco Express
Williams Express (formerly Mapco)

8009 Moores Lane 5/20/2016 Paid $1000 penalty

Pei Wei Asian Diner 101 Creekside Crossing, Ste 1800 4/4/2019 TBD
Piggly Wiggly 144 Wilson Pike 5/18/1994 45 days
Shogun Steakhouse 1648 Westgate Circle 8/19/1999 30 days
Sportsman Lodge 1640 Westgate Circle 8/19/1999 30 days
Star Market 120 Franklin Road 10/19/1984 30 day probation
Star Market 120 Franklin Road 4/4/1985 30 days
Stout Burgers and Beers 400 Centerview Drive 2/27/2018 Paid $2500 penalty
The Smokey Cigar 2 1800 Carothers Pkwy, Ste 1 5/20/2016 Paid $1000 penalty
Twin Peaks 1634 Galleria Boulevard 4/4/2019 TBD







 

 

 

 
July 18, 2019 

 
Sent Via E-Mail  
Beer Board for the City of Brentwood 
Attn: Holly Earls, City Recorder 
Holly.Earls@brentwoodtn.gov  
 

RE:  Local Taco Beer Board Summons 
 Beer Board Hearing Date: July 22, 2019 at 7:00 pm 
 Case No. BBB-2019-03 
 Citation Date: April 4, 2019 
 Local Taco Address: 146 Pewitt Drive, Brentwood, TN 37027 

 
Dear Ms. Earls: 
 
 After speaking with Ms. Corn, City Attorney for the City of Brentwood, I would like to 
provide the Beer Board with this supplement to the Questionnaire previously submitted. Please 
forward this letter to the Beer Board Members prior to the scheduled Beer Board hearing. The 
purpose of this supplement is to provide additional information concerning mitigating factors that 
may be considered when determining any penalty to be assessed. This letter also addresses the 
current ownership of Local Taco. 
 
 First, Local Taco does not deny that its employee served an underage individual a beer on 
April 4, 2019. This was an unfortunate oversight on the part of the employee, a valued and long-
serving employee for Local Taco. Prior to this incident, she was aware of Local Taco’s policies 
concerning carding individuals to insure they are over 21 years of age. She made a poor judgment 
call and has accepted responsibility for her conduct. 
 
 As a result of this incident, Local Taco has instituted several new policies and training to 
insure a similar, future incident does not occur. Local Taco has now instituted a card everyone 
policy. Further, each employee that cards a customer who orders an alcoholic beverage must write 
down the birth date and enter this information into the computer system utilized for inputting orders. 
This encourages employees to take a harder look at the birth date and avoid “glancing” during busy 
times. When the birth date is entered into the system, the birth date will show up on the ticket sent to 
the bar where the bartender prepares the alcoholic beverages. If there is no birth date on the ticket, 
the bartender will not prepare the drink and speak with the employee or a manager to check on why 
the birth date was not included. If there is a birth date on the bartender’s ticket, the bartender will 
confirm that the birth date shows the customer is over 21 years of age. This two-tier system is aimed 
at preventing mistakes that may be made in calculating the customer’s age by the server. All 
employees have been trained on these new policies. 
 
 I also want to discuss Local Taco’s current ownership. Local Taco’s beer permit is held by 
TLT Group Brentwood, LLC. TLT Group Brentwood, LLC is owned 100% by TLT Group, LLC. 



TLT Group, LLC is currently owned by TLT Development Partners, LLC. The current owners 
purchased TLT Group, LLC in November 2018. As part of the Membership Purchase Agreement, 
the prior owners of TLT Group, LLC did not disclose any past license violations and made 
assurances that all necessary steps had been completed so that the licenses in place would continue 
past the purchase date and were sufficient for the new owners to carry on the business in all material 
respects. After the new owners took ownership of TLT Group, LLC, they contacted the Tennessee 
Alcoholic Beverage who informed them that the purchase of the grandparent entity—TLT Group, 
LLC—was not a change in ownership that would require new applications. Relying on ABC’s 
opinion, the owners proceeded forward with operating their business. 
 
 On April 4, 2019, Local Taco was cited with selling alcohol to an underage minor. As a 
result of this citation, Local Taco learned for the first time that its beer permit had another citation 
from prior to the ownership change of TLT Group, LLC. The prior citation stemmed from the sale of 
an alcoholic beverage to a minor on February 27, 2018. The previous owners did not disclose this 
citation in the Membership Purchase Agreement. Local Taco now finds itself facing a penalty for a 
second violation. 
 
 Local Taco is not attempting to shift responsibility. It is responsible for the April 4, 2019 
citation that is the subject of this hearing. While it is true that Local Taco relief upon the assurances 
of the previous owners as to the current standing of its licenses and permits, Local Taco did not 
engage the City of Brentwood prior to, or soon after, the purchase in November. Similarly, when 
Local Taco was informed by TN ABC that the purchase of the grandparent company—TLT Group, 
LLC—was not a change in ownership requiring new licensing, Local Taco failed to check with the 
City of Brentwood to see if it shared the same view as TN ABC. Local Taco takes full responsibility 
for this oversight and will work with the City to ensure that it has any information it requires on this 
matter.  
 
 In closing, I hope the Beer Board takes into consideration the unique circumstances involved 
in this matter and will consider the mitigating factors and corrective measures outlined in this letter 
when determining an adequate penalty. At the hearing, we will have Michael Sloane, President of 
TLT Development Partners, LLC, Billy Beels, General Manager for Local Taco, and William Ball, 
legal counsel with my firm (I will unfortunately be on a family vacation at the time of the hearing). 
Thank you.    
 
  
 

Very truly yours, 
 

    THE ORTALE KELLEY LAW FIRM 

    /s/ Mickey Schmitt     
    Mickey Schmitt 
 
 
CC:  William Ball, via email at wball@ortalekelley.com 
 Kristen Corn, via email at Kristen.Corn@brentwoodtn.gov  
 Billy Beels, via email at bbeels@localtaco.com 
 Michael Sloane, via email at msloaneii@aol.com  


	Agenda
	AI_4982_Approval or correction of minutes
	    Draft Minutes
	3.1._Request of Serve It Up Nashville, LLC for Off-Premises Beer Permit at Brentwood Market
	    Application
	3.2._Beer Law Violation Hearing - Brick's Cafe & Bistro, LLC
	    Hearing Format
	    Summons and Incident Report
	Summons_Served 05.20.2019
	Reg. Citation #9272 - Bricks Cafe - LBDRST-WIL-1800169

	    Penalty Guidelines
	    Beer Violations History
	Table 1

	    2019 Questionnaire
	    2018 Questionnaire
	3.3._Beer Law Violation Hearing - Chili's Grill & Bar, 107 Creekside Crossing
	    Hearing Format
	    Summons and Incident Report
	Summons_Served 05.20.2019
	Reg. Citation #13054 - Chili's (Brentwood) - LBDRST-WIL-1800427

	    Penalty Guidelines
	    Beer Violations History
	Table 1

	    Questionnaire
	    Prehearing Memorandum
	Wells Letter page 1
	Prehearing Brief 4827-0045-2508 v2
	wells exhibit a
	Exhibit A - The BARS Program
	wells exhibit b
	Exhibit B - Brentwood Corrective Action Plan 4819-1546-7932 v1
	wells exhibit c
	Exhibit C - Red Box Carding Memo 4832-9152-7324 v1

	3.4._Beer Law Violation Hearing - Local Taco
	    Hearing Format
	    Summons and Incident Report
	Summons_Served 05.20.2019
	Reg. Citation #9276 - Local Taco (The) - 70082

	    Penalty Guidelines
	    Beer Violations History
	Table 1

	    2019 Questionnaire
	    2018 Questionnaire
	    Supplement from Local Taco

